I. INTRODUCTION 

After eight-and-a-half years of litigation, the circuit court ordered all claims to 

arbitration and the matter removed from the circuit court's docket. The litigation included 

Defendants' removal of the action to federal court, briefing by the parties, remand back to circuit 

court, consideration of Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, briefing, a hearing, submissions of 

proposed fmdings and conclusions, consideration of Defendants' Motion for Clarification of its 

Motion to Dismiss, briefing, another hearing, participation in court ordered mediation, 

completion of discovery with both written interrogatories and depositions, and significantly an 

evidentiary hearing on critical liability issues with introduction of extensive exhibits and witness 

testimony, oral argument, more briefmg and submission of proposed findings and conclusions. 

During all of this time, Defendants never fomlally moved for a ruling on the issue 

of arbitration until immediately before a trial on liability issues, and, then, the motion was only 

contingent on the court deciding other issues. Given the totality of the actions taken during the 

eight-and-a-halfyears oflitigation in circuit court, Oefendants waived their right to arbitration by 

failing to demand arbitration in a timely or proper manner and by acting inconsistently with any 

intent to arbitrate Plaintiff s claims. Moreover, it was clearly improper for the Circuit Court, to 

rule on this issue after the significant time and proceedings before it. An equally important 

consideration is the prejudice to Plaintiff, which has already tried its key liability issues in an 

evidentiary hearing, has participated in protracted litigation with discovery and hearings and the 

consequent notable delay. 

The ultimate result in this case frustrates all traditional notions of a just, speedy 

and inexpensive determination. If this Court upholds the circuit court's order, the parties' efforts 



over the past eight-and-a-half years will be all for naught. The parties would, in essence, "be 

required to start anew and Defendants be given a second chance. 

Plaintiff, accordingly, urges that the circuit court's order referring this case to 

arbitration be reversed and that the case be remanded to the Business Court Division for further 

proceedings. The Circuit Court, however, was correct in holding that Counts I, III, IV, V, VI 

and VII of Plaintiffs Complaint are not precluded by the doctrine of res judicata. 

II. 	 ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


Beaver asserts the following assignments of error: 


1. Because Cabot waived its right to arbitration, the circuit court erred by 

referring Beaver's claims against Cabot to arbitration. 

2. Because Beaver's claims are not subject to arbitration, the circuit court 

erred in referring its claims to arbitration. 

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Beaver Coal Company, Limited ("Beaver") and Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation 

("Cabot") are parties to two agreements: (i) a 1929 oil and gas lease covering 17,368 acres of 

land in Raleigh County (the "1929 Oil and Gas Lease"); and (ii) a 1977 pipeline license 

agreement granting a license to install and operate a 12 3/4 inch gas pipeline across Beaver's 

property (the "Pipeline Easement" and, collectively, the "Agreements"). 

The 1929 Oil and Gas Lease includes the standard rights to drill and operate wells 

and install well lines, meters and associated facilities. An arbitration clause provides for the 

arbitration of issues pertaining to "performance" and "covenants" under the lease. Significantly, 

under a 1956 amendment to the lease, Beaver granted the additional right to use 2,516 acres of 
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its property to operate a gas storage field in conjunction with Cabot's then existing pipeline 

system. 

In the late 1990s, Beaver determined that Cabot was deducting post-production 

costs from royalties, and that royalties were not being paid on native gas produced from wells in 

the storage field. Unable to resolve either issue, Beaver instituted an arbitration under the 1929 

Oil and Gas Lease in 2001, and the issues were arbitrated until an award was rendered in 2004, 

holding that Cabot could deduct post-production costs from royalty, but limited the costs to 

those that were determined to be reasonable and held that Cabot was obligated to pay royalty on 

native gas produced from wells in the storage field. 

Subsequent to the arbitration, this Court decided Estate ofGarrison G. Tawney v. 

Columbia Natural Resources, 633 S.E.2d 22 (W. Va. 2006), holding that the deduction of post

production costs, including volumetric deductions, was impermissible. Clearly, this decision 

constituted an intervening change in the law. 

Also, subsequent to the arbitration, Beaver determined for the first time that Cabot 

had conveyed to Cranberry Pipeline Company ("Cranberry") all of its rights under the 1929 Oil 

and Gas Lease to operate the storage field and all well lines, meters and similar facilities, and its 

rights to operate the 12-inch pipeline under the 1977 Pipeline License. This conveyance violated 

the prohibitions against assignments contained in both Agreements. 

As a result, Beaver filed its Complaint and Petition for Injwlctive Relief in this 

action on March 7, 2008, seeking: (i) ejectment of Cranberry from its property; (ii) damages 

resulting from Cranberry's trespass; (iii) declaratory judgment for forfeiture of the Agreements; 

(iv) damages resulting from Cabot's assignment of rights under the Agreements; (v) enforcement 
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of the unsatisfied portion of the arbitration award; and (vi) royalties due to Beaver calculated in 

accordance with an intervening change in law. SUPCRTOQ0009-22. 

Given the fact that the central issue raised on this appeal is the question of 

whether Cabot waived any rights it may have had to arbitrate issues under the 1929 Oil and Gas 

Lease, the actions taken by Cabot establishing the waiver become critical. 

The first action by Defendants was to remove this case to the United States 

District Court for the Southern District of West Virginia on April 9, 2008. SUPCRT000025-28. 

Shortly thereafter, instead of answering the Complaint and raising affirmative defenses, both 

Defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss on three grounds, asserting that (i) Beaver's claims are 

barred by the doctrine of res judicata; (ii) Beaver's claims are barred by the statute of limitations 

pertaining to vacancy of an arbitration award; and (iii) Beaver's trespass claims against 

Cranberry are barred by the applicable two-year statute of limitations. SUPCRT000048-87. 

Notably absent from Defendants' Motion to Dismiss was any effort to seek a ruling or assert an 

argument that Beaver's claims were subject to arbitration. Beaver then filed its responsive brief 

(SUPCRT000088-100), addressing each issue raised by Defendants in their motion, and 

Defendants filed a reply brief (SUPCRTOOOIQI-112), again with no mention of arbitration. 

During this time, the parties exchanged written discovery, served initial disclosures and 

participated in scheduling a status conference. See SUPCRT000005-8. In May 2008, Beaver 

filed its Motion to Remand and again Beaver briefed the relevant issues, Defendants responded, 

and Beaver replied, all with no mention that any claim should be arbitrated. 

Without ruling on Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, the district court remanded the 

case back to Raleigh County Circuit Court by order dated February 18,2009. SUPCRTOOOI12

4 




122. Thus, during the first full year of litigation in this case, the issue of arbitration was not 

raised by the Defendants, nor did either the district court or circuit court address the issue of 

arbitration. 

On remand, the circuit court entered its July 1, 2009, Scheduling Order, with trial 

originally scheduled for March 9, 2010. SUPCRTOOOOOl. Pursuant to the Scheduling Order, the 

parties submitted their respective fact witness and expert witness disclosures. SUPCRTOOOOOI. 

On August 5, 2009, Defendants noticed a November 16, 2009 hearing on their previously filed 

Motion to Dismiss. SUPCRTOOOOOl. Prior to the hearing on Defendants' Motion to Dismiss, 

Defendants served Beaver with interrogatories and requests for production of documents, to 

which Beaver responded. SUPCRTOOQ001. 

On November 16, 2009, a hearing was held before the circuit court on 

Defendants' Motion to Dismiss. A transcript of the hearing is included in the joint appendix at 

SUPCRT000123-157. At this hearing, the parties addressed the questions raised in the Motion: 

(i) whether Beaver's claims were barred by the doctrine of res judicata; (ii) whether Beaver's 

claims were barred by the statute of limitations pertaining to vacancy of an arbitration award; 

and (iii) whether Beaver's trespass claims against Cranberry were barred by the applicable two

year statute of limitations. See November 16,2009, transcript of hearing SUPCRT000123-157. 

The issue of arbitration was not raised by the Defendants, and, consequently, the circuit court did 

not address the issue ofarbitration. Id 

At the circuit court's behest, by agreed order dated February 1, 2010, the parties 

agreed to submit proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law on the pending Motion to 

Dismiss. See SUPCRT000158-159. In their proposed order, Defendants inserted as suggested 
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relief the referral to arbitration, an issue not raised in the motion. SUP000176. Beaver objected 

to the suggestion of arbitration on the grounds that the issue of arbitration was not raised in the 

motion, not briefed and nQt argued before the circuit court. SUPCRTOOO177 -185. 

By order dated July 13, 2010, the circuit court denied Defendants' Motion to 

Dismiss (SUPCRT000186-199) and ruled on the only issues raised in their Motion, holding that 

(i) Beaver's claims were "not barred by the doctrine of res judicata; (ii) Beaver's claims were not 

barred by a three-month statute of limitations period to vacate an arbitration award; and 

(iii) Beaver's trespass claims were not barred by the two-year statute of limitations. 

SUPCRTOOO186-199. 

On August 16, 2010, nearly two-and-a-half years from the inception of this case, 

Defendants filed a Motion for Clarification or in the Alternative, a Motion for Relief from Order 

Denying Oefendants' Motion to Dismiss. SUPCRT000200-209. Without expanding the issues 

which were the subject of the Motion to Dismiss, Defendants argued in their brief that, as 

alternate relief to that sought in the Motion, Beaver's claims were subject to arbitration. 

SUPCRT000200-209. In a footnote, Defendants stated that, in the event the circuit court did not 

compel arbitration, Defendants would file a writ of prohibition. SUPCR T00020 1. On 

November 12,2010, the circuit court held a hearing on Defendants' Motion for Clarification. A 

transcript of the hearing is included in the joint appendix at SUPCRT000313-350. In the end, 

Defendants' Motion to Dismiss never moved to refer the case to arbitration, and, accordingly, the 

court did not rule on the issue. Also, Defendants did not pursue a writ of prohibition. Shortly 

thereafter, on December 6, 2010, Defendants filed their Answer to Plaintiffs Complaint and 

Response to Petition for Injunctive Relief (SUPCRT000337-354) and asserted as a defense that 

Beaver's claims were subject to arbitration. SUPCRT000338. 
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On January 5, 2011, the circuit court entered its Second Amended Scheduling 

Order, which rescheduled trial for September 13,2011. SUPCRT000002. The parties took the 

depositions of several fact witnesses and Rule 30(b )(7) corporate representatives. 

SUPCRTOOOQ02. 

In year four of litigation, substantial discovery was completed and, pursuant to the 

circuit court's Scheduling Order, the parties mediated the case on August 25, 2011. 

SUPCRT000002. By letter to the circuit court dated September 9, 2011, the mediator informed 

the circuit court that mediation was unsuccessful. SUPCRT000002. 

As year four concluded without any effort to seek a ruling on arbitration, 

settlement discussions continued and, on February 13,2012, the parties submitted a joint motion 

to set aside the amended Scheduling Order on the grounds that the parties were close to 

settlement. SUPCRT000002. In the end, the parties were unable to settle the matter. 

Accordingly, Beaver noticed a status conference for July 15, 2013. SUPCRT000002. At the 

status conference, the parties agreed that there were certain outstanding legal issues that required 

a preliminary ruling prior to proceeding to trial, none of which pertained to referring this matter 

to arbitration. 

By agreed order dated December 11,2013 (the "Agreed Order"), the circuit court 

adopted the five legal issues which the parties agreed were necessary for resolution of the case. 

SUPCRT000355-357. The Agreed Order established a briefing schedule and set a hearing for 

February 21, 2014. SUPCRT000355-357. The five issues stipulated for adjudication were as 

follows: 
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I. 	 Whether Cabot's 1983 Assignment to its wholly owned subsidiary, 
Cranberry Pipeline Corporation, constitutes a violation of the 1929 
Lease or the 1977 License Agreement. 

II. 	 Whether the 1929 Lease and/or 1977 License Agreement have 
been forfeited or terminated due to the assignment, or, 
alternatively, whether Beaver's remedies are limited to those 
compensable damages, if any, which may be allowed by law and 
proven at trial. 

III. 	 Whether Beaver's claims regarding the assignment are barred by 
any affIrmative defenses asserted by Cabot,. including ratifIcation 
of the lease, statute of limitations, laches, estoppels, and waiver. . 

IV. 	 Whether the award of the arbitrators regarding royalty payments 
between the parties operates as res judicata or bar to the re
litigation of the issues decided by the Arbitration Panel, and 
whether the Court's ruling in this regard is suitable for certification 
of the West Virginia Supreme Court ofAppeals. 

V. 	 If not barred by res judicata, whether monetary or volumetric 
deductions made by Cabot from Beaver's royalties were improper 
under the terms of the 1929 Lease and West Virginia law, and if 
so, the time period for which Beaver is entitled to damages. 

Thereafter, on February 10,2014, Defendants filed a Motion for Partial Summary 

Judgment, which, although somewhat at odds with the Agreed Order, addressed the five issues 

outlined in the order. SUPCRT000358-402. Similarly, Plaintiff submitted its Memorandum of 

Law addressing the same five issues. SUPCRT000593-623. In tum, both parties responded to 

the opposing party's submission. SUPCRTOOI613-1636 (Response by Beaver) and 

SUPCRT001636-1649 (Response by Defendants). 

On February 21, 2014, following the parties' submissions on the five stipUlated 

issues, the circuit court held an evidentiary hearing pursuant to the Agreed Order, at which time 

the parties submitted both documentary evidence, witness testimony and oral argument in 

support of their respective positions. A transcript of the hearing is included in the joint appendix 

at SUPCRTOO1650-1765. Thus, as year six of this litigation drew to a close, both parties sought 
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a ruling on the five issues in the Agreed Order. Notably, these issues included most of the 

affirmative defenses raised by Defendants, but arbitration was not included. Rather than ruling at 

the hearing, the circuit court directed the parties to submit proposed orders. SUPCRTOOI766

1767. In accordance with the circuit court's direction, the parties submitted proposed orders 

[SUPCRTOOI768-1808 (Beaver's Proposed Order) and SUPCRTOOI809-1858 (Defendants' 

Proposed Order)] and responded to the opposing party's submissions [SUPCRTOOI868-1880 

(Response by Beaver) and SUPCRT001859-1861 (Response by Defendants)]. 

The remainder of year six and all of year seven and half of year eight of this 

litigation were spent waiting on the critical decisions presented pursuant to the Agreed Order at 

great expense and work. Having not yet received a ruling, on January 13, 2016, Beaver 

submitted a Motion for Status Conference. SUPCRTOOI881-1883. Accordingly, a hearing was 

noticed for March 21, 2016 (SUPCRTOOI884), followed by an amended notice for hearing for 

April 4, 2016. SUPCRTOOI885. At the April 4, 2016, status conference, Defendants made no 

suggestion that the case should be referred to arbitration, rather than decided by the court. At the 

hearing, the circuit court instructed the parties to advise the court on whether another mediation 

would be productive. Beaver promptly advised the circuit court by letter dated April 13, 2016, 

that the parties were in agreement that further mediation would be unproductive. 

SUPCRT000004. Having not received a ruling on the issues, by letter dated May 6, 2016, 

counsel for Beaver advised the circuit court that the matter could not be resolved without a ruling 

on the five issues. SUPCR T000004. 

By order dated August 25,2016, the circuit court declined to rule on issued in the 

Agreed Order and ordered all claims to arbitration and the matter removed from the circuit 

court's docket. SUPCRTOOI887-1916. Pursuant to the final order, the arbitrators are directed to 
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address the five issues identified in the circuit court's December 10, 2013, Agreed Order. The 

circuit court further directed the arbitrators to recognize the intervening change in law. As a 

final matter, the circuit court held that Counts I, III, IV,V, VI and VII of Beaver's Complaint are 

not precluded by the doctrine of res judicata. Beaver filed a timely Notice of Appeal on 

September 26, 2016.1 

IV. 	 SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT 

Under the totality of the circumstances, I;>efendants have waived any right to 

arbitration by failing to raise arbitration in a timely manner and by acting inconsistently with a 

right to arbitrate. As acknowledged by this Court, just like any contract provision, the right to 

arbitration can be waived expressly or by implication. A right to arbitrate will be deemed 

waived if the waiving party acted inconsistently with the right to arbitrate through its acts or 

language. Here, the p1arties litigated the merits of the cases for two-and-a-half years prior to 

Defendants raising arbitration as an issue. Instead, for eight-and-a-half years, Defendants 

availed themselves of all procedures available in civil court, including the removal to federal 

court, motions, complete discovery, court ordered mediation and participation in trial on the key 

liability issues identified in the Agreed Order. While this Court does not require the party 

asserting waiver to demonstrate prejudice, Beaver has nonetheless been prejudiced, not only by 

Defendants' failure to demand arbitration in a timely manner, but by Defendants' option to avail 

itself of all the discovery and procedures available in the circuit court. Cabot's conduct from the 

beginning of this case to the final order has been completely inconsistent with asserting any 

IOn September 23, 2016, Oefendants filed a Notice of Appeal (Case No. 16-0904), which made the 
following assignments of error: (i) the circuit court erred in ruling that the doctrine of res judicata did not apply to 
Beaver's claims pertaining to the previously rendered arbitration award; (ii) the circuit court improperly ordered the 
arbitration panel to consider specific law and directed its scope of authority; and (iii) the circuit court erred by 
ordering all issues to arbitration, even though some issues arise from contracts that do not contain an arbitration 
provision' 
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contract right it might have to arbitrate any issue that might have been arbitrable under the 1929 

Oil and Gas Lease. 

v. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

Beaver requests oral argument pursuant to Rule 20 of the West Virginia Rules of 

Appellate Procedure. The legal issues are fundamental, and some are relatively novel. 

Accordingly, Beaver respectfully submits that the decisional process would be significantly 

aided by oral argument. 

VI. ARGUMENT 

A. STANDARD OF REVIEW 

By Order dated August 25, 2016, the circuit court ordered all claims to arbitration 

and ordered the matter removed from the court's docket. 

In the context of arbitration agreements, this Court has noted that a circuit court 

addressing a motion to compel arbitration must, in the first instance, determine whether a valid, 

enforceable arbitration agreement exists as a matter of law. State ex rei. Dunlap v. Berger, 211 

W. Va. 549, 555, 567 S.E.2d 265, 271 (2002). A circuit court order compelling arbitration is 

based upon a legal determination that the terms of the arbitration agreement require the matter in 

dispute to be arbitrated. McGraw v. Am. Tobacco Co., 224 W. Va. 211, 222, 681 S.E.2d 96, 107 

(2009). As such, this Court shall review the circuit court's legal determinations de novo. Id 

Moreover, this Court shall preclude enforcement of a circuit court's order 

compelling arbitration "after a de novo review of the circuit court's legal determinations leads to 

the inescapable conclusion that the circuit court clearly erred, as a matter of law, in directing that 

11 




a matter be arbitrated or that the circuit court's order constitutes a clear-cut, legal error plainly in

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