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

issues remaining, if any, arising from the 1929 Lease are subject to arbitration, but those arising 

from the 1977 License Agreement are not. This issue is briefed fully in the "Brief ofPetitioners" 

filed by Cabot and Cranberry in Case No. 16-0904. 

Regarding Beaver's assignment oferror that Cabot implicitly waived its right to arbitration 

under the 1929 Lease, the Circuit Court never made a ruling on this issue and it is, therefore, not 

ripe for appeal. Further, the Circuit Court record, including the Motion to Dismiss, the arguments 

ofcounsel, and the briefs as recited in the Statement ofthe Facts above, establishes that Cabot and 

Cranberry never waived the applicability of the arbitration clause. To the contrary, Cabot sought 
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to assert its rights under the arbitration clause from the initial pleading, which sought dismissal 

based on the fmality of the bargained-for arbitration language. At the hearing on the Motion to 

Dismiss, when the parties and the Circuit Court engaged in discussion ofthe potential applicability 

of the arbitration clause to any viable new allegations, counsel for Cabot and Cranberry clearly 

explained that there would be significant Issues before an arbitration panel to assess whether a 

breach ofthe 1929 Lease occurred as Beaver claims. When the Circuit Court denied the Motion to 

Dismiss, Cabot and Cranberry sought clarification from the Court because it failed to address the 

arbitrability of the claims in its Order. The Court never ruled on the Motion for Relief, but Cabot 

and Cranberry then filed an Answer by agreement of the Parties and with leave of the Court that 

again asserted as the Fifth Affirmative Defense that the claims as stated in Beaver's Complaint 

were subject to arbitration. 

Beaver's characterization of the Cabot's conduct as neglecting to assert any rights under 

the arbitration provision for eight years is in direct contradiction to the record. Beaver's briefreads 

as though Cabot never raised the issue ofthe arbitration clause in the 1929 Lease and the previously 

decided final and binding arbitration award ~d decision as barring the re-litigation of the royalty 

claims. When the Circuit Court failed to recognize the application of res judicata, Cabot sought 

clarification on the issue of arbitrability in the Motion for Relief, but the Circuit Court did not 

address the issue at that time. In no way, either expressly or impliedly, did Cabot waive the right 

to arbitration. 

Finally, Beaver asks the Court to reverse the Circuit Court's Final Order and makes the 

procedurally untimely and improper request for remand to the Business Court Division.3 Cabot 

3 Remand to the Business Court Division would be procedurally inappropriate because the issue 
was never presented in the Circuit Court, and it has been mentioned for the first time in the 
Petitioner's Brief. 
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and Cranberry respectfully request the Court deny the relief requested by Beaver; grant the relief 

requested by Cabot and Cranberry in their cross-appeal; bar the royalty claims as previously 

decided by a [mal and binding arbitration award; reverse the Circuit Court's decision to compel 

arbitration on matters arising out ofthe 1977 Agreement; and remand the consent to assign' claims 

arising from the 1977 Agreement and Cabot and Cranberry's affirmative defenses to those claims 

to the Circuit Court for further consideration. 

V. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

The legal, factual, and complex procedural issues presented in this Petition are unique and 

they merit oral argument. Cabot and Cranberry request oral argument pursuant to Rwe 20 of the 

Rules ofAppellate Procedure. Many issues raised in this appeal have significant overlap with 

issues raised by Cabot and Cranberry in their cross-appeal filed in Case No. 16-0904. For this 

reason, the parties submitted a Joint Appendix, but Cabot and Cranberry believe that judicial 

efficiency in these appeals wowd be best served if the oral arguments in both appeals are 

consolidated and held jointly. 

VI. ARGUMENT 

A. 	 Standard of Review 

This Court's review of the Order entered by the Circuit Court is de novo. See Syl. Pt. 1, 

Painter v. Peavy, 192 W. Va. 189,451 S.E.2d 755 (1994) ("A circuit court's entry of summary 

judgment is reviewed de novo. "). The Circuit Court's Final Order decided the issues raised in 

Cabot and Cranberry'S Motionfor Partial Summary Judgment, and reswted in the removal of the 

case from the Circuit Court's docket and ordering all remaining claims be sent to arbitration. lA. 

at 1887-1916. "Although our standard ofreview for summary judgment remains de novo, a circuit 

court's order granting summary judgment must set out factual [mdings sufficient to permit 

meaningful appellate review. Findings of fact, by necessity, include those facts which the circuit 
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court fmds relevant, detenninative of the issues and undisputed." Syl. Pt. 3, Stout v. Ravenswood 

Aluminum Corp., 207 W. Va. 427, 533 S.E.2d 359 (2000). The Final Order contained substantive 

fmdings offact and conclusions oflaw sufficient to pennit this Court meaningful appellate review. 

B 	 The Circuit Court Did No.t Rule on Whether Cabot Waived Its Right to Arbitrate, 

and the Issue Is, Therefore, Not Ripe for Appeal. 


"The Supreme Court of Appeals is limited in its authority to resolve assignments of 

non jurisdictional errors to a consideration of those matters passed upon by the court below and 

fairly arising upon the portions of the record designated for appellate review." Syl. Pt. 6, in part, 

Parker v. Knowlton Canst. Co., Inc., 158 W. Va. 314,210 S.E.2d 918 (1975); See also Syl. Pt. 3, 

inpart,Dean v. Dep'tofMotor Vehicles, 195 W. Va. 70,464 S.E.2d 589 (1995 (per curiam) ("This 

Court will not consider questions, nonjurisdictional in their nature, which have not been acted upon 

by the trial court. "(internal quotations and citation omitted)). The Final Order made no fmdings 

of fact or conclusions of law regarding whether Cabot had either implicitly or expressly waived a 

right to arbitration. It is entirely unclear from the record whether the Court ever considered the 

issue ofwaiver. 

In Stephens v. West Virginia College ofGraduate Studies, 203 W. Va. 81,506 S.E.2d 336 

(1998), this Court addressed a similar situation where it found "no indication in the record before 

[it] that the issue was presented to and considered by the circuit court during the underlying 

summary judgment proceedings." Stephens, 506 S.E.2d at 343. Here, Beaver mentioned the issue 

of waiver in its Response to the Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, but the Court never 

addressed the argument in its Final Order and, as the Stephens Court noted, "[g]enerally, [the 

Supreme Court of Appeals has] held that a circuit court speaks through its orders." Id. The 

Stephens Court ultimately concluded that because there was no indication that the circuit court had 
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opportunity to rule on the issue, it was not ripe for decision by the Supreme Court ofAppeals. See 

id. at 344. 

The instant matter is analogous to Stephens because the record indicates that the Court 

never ruled on the issue of the waiver alleged by Beaver. Therefore, as in Stephens, the issue of 

waiver in this matter is not ripe for decision by this Court. As such, Beaver's fust assignment of 

error seeks a determination by this Court on an issue that was never decided by the Circuit Court 

and is not ripe for appeal. Even if the Court considers the issue ripe for appeal, the record clearly 

establishes Cabot and Cranberry did not waive any rights to compel or enforce the arbitration 

clause of the 1929 Lease. 

C. Cabot Did Not Waive Its Right to Arbitrate. 

Beaver's brief argues one assignment oferror; that Cabot and Cranberry waived any right 

to appeal by their conduct in participating in the litigation that took place in the Circuit Court. The 

argument is directly at odds with the record because the record, as summarized in the Statement 

of Facts above shows, Cabot and Cranberry sought to enforce the arbitration clause of the 1929 

Lease from their initial Motion to Dismiss, in the arguments on the Motion to Dismiss, in the 

Motionfor Relief, in the Fifth Affumative Defense of their Answer, and in the briefmg on Cabot 

and Cranberry's Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. Beaver's claim subjected Cabot and 

Cranberry to relitigation ofmatters already decided by final and binding arbitration, and Cabot and 

Cranberry were forced to participate in the attempted relitigation to assert and preserve their rights 

under the arbitration provision of the 1929 Lease. To then, as Beaver attempts to do, argue that 

such participation amounts to a waiver of the very rights that Cabot sought to enforce is 

fundamentally flawed reasoning. 
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Arbitration, like any other contractual provision, may be waived expressly or impliedly by 

a party, Parsons v. Halliburton Energy Servs., 785 S.E.2d 844 CW. Va. 2016), but the record is 

clear no such waiver applies in this case. Beaver seeks to distinguish the holding in the Parsons 

case from the instant matter, but it is clearly applicable to the instant facts because the Court found 

the defendant in Parsons did not waive its right to arbitrate. Like Cabot and Cranberry, the 

defendant in Parsons raised the issue or arbitrability in it's first responsive pleading. Parsons, 785 

S.E.2d at 849. Cabot and Cranberry's Motion to Dismiss likewise asserted rights under the 

arbitration agreement. It sought dismissal of all claims that were previously brought or should 

have been brought in the fmal and binding arbitration. 

Cabot and Cranberry's Motion to Dismiss, filed in federal court with the removal in 2008, 

sought a declaration that not only were the royalty claims subject to the arbitration clause in the 

1929 Lease, but they had already been decided by a final and binding arbitration. J.A. at 25-87. 

Beaver's contention that removing the case to federal court was somehow a decision to litigate in 

federal court and to waive the issue ofarbitrability entirely ignores the substance of the Motion to 

Dismiss and stands for the notion that a removal can be considered·a waiver ofa party's affirmative 

defenses. No case law has been found that supports the proposition that removal constitutes a 

waIver. 

Cabot and Cranberry's affirmative defenses, including arbitrability and res judicata, are 

fully briefed in the Cabot and Cranberry's cross-appeal in Case No. 16-0904, but it is clearly stated 

in the pleadings that any claim arising from or related to the 1929 Lease was subject to an 

arbitration clause and had already been arbitrated. Cabot and Cranberry have asserted from the 

initial pleadings that the decision and award of the panel was final and binding with no right of 
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appeal. Therefore, Beaver's argument that Cabot and Cranberry have knowingly waived any issues 

related to the arbitrability and fmality of the arbitration of the royalty claims is absurd. 

Beaver's argument seems to hinge on the idea that because Cabot and Cranberry 

participated in discovery as required by the Circuit Court's Scheduling Order to preserve their 

rights, they thereby knowingly sought to waive the right to arbitration. Beaver also argues that 

Cabot and Cranberry's mention of an intent to seek a writ ofprohibition is evidence ofawaiver, 

but mischaracterizes the narrative as though Cabot and Cranberry voluntarily chose not to pursue 

the writ and instead elected litigation in the Circuit Court. Rather, the writ was going to be sought 

in response to the Circuit Court's potential denial ofthe Motion for Relief, as noted in the Motion, 

itself. J.A. at 201, FN. 1. However, the Court never ruled on the Motion for Relief, and the Cabot, 

therefore, had no choice but to continue complying with the Court's Scheduling Orders while 

awaiting a decision on the Motion. Notably, the Motion for Relief directly argues that Beaver's 

claims should be dismissed and arbitration compelled were the Circuit Court not inclined to 

enforce the doctrine of res judicata, but again, no decision was made on arbitrability. 

The remaining cases cited by Beaver are not controlling and easily distinguishable. In Am. 

Reliable Ins. Co. v. Stillwell, 212 F. Supp. 2d 621 (N.D.W. Va. 2002), the insurer plaintiff 

previously defended a claim in state court against the insured's claims of bad faith, wherein it 

"filed an answer offering 14 affIrmative defenses, none ofwhich referred to their desire to arbitrate 

the claims in accordance with the arbitration clause." Am. Reliable Ins. Co. v. Stillwell, 212 F. 

Supp. 2d 621,624. Only after the insured amended its complaint did the defendant-insurer mention 

the existence ofan arbitration clause in its answer thereto, and it shortly thereafter moved the court 

to compel arbitration after fourteen months of participation in the case. Id. The insurer's 

participation in the case was done without any mention ofthe arbitrability ofthe claims or its rights 
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thereunder, which is clearly distinguishable from the instant matter where the arbitration clause 

has been the focus of Cabot's and Cranberry's defenses from the fust responsive pleading filed. 

In Jones Motor Co. v. Chauffeurs, Teamsters & Helpers Local Union No. 633,671 F.2d 

38 (1st Cir. 1982), the Court found the defendant waived its rights under the arbitration agreement 

because the parties engaged in litigation on the merits of the case for almost a ye~, and "[a]t no 

time during these proceedings did anyone mention arbitration." Jones Motor Co. v. Chauffeurs, 

Teamsters & Helpers Local Union No. 633, 671 F.2d 38, 42. In fact, it appeared that the district 

court in Jones Motor compelled arbitration sua sponte. Id ("the district court decided, evidently 

completely on its own, that the issue should be heard by arbitrators, and dismissed the case."). 

Jones Motor is not applicable to these facts. 

Beaver also cites to a number of Second Circuit cases, using as its main example In re S & 

R Co. OF KlNGSTONv. LATONA TRUCKING,. INC., 159 F.3d 80 (2d Cir. 1998). For the same 

reason as the prior cases, LATONA TRUCKING is not analogous to the facts at bar. In LATONA 

TRUCKING, the defendant insurer answered the complaint and failed to mention the arbitration 

agreement in its affinnative defenses. LATONA TRUCKING, 159 F.3d at 82. The Court's finding 

of waiver was predicated on the engaging in discovery without asserting rights under the 

arbitration agreement. Id at 84-85. Again, in the instant matter, Cabot and Cranberry raised the 

issue of arbitrability and res judicata in its Motion to Dismiss, the arguments on the Motion to 

Dismiss, the Motion for Relief and in the Fifth Affirmative Defense in the Answer. LATONA 

TR UCKING is inapplicable to this case. 

Johnson Assocs. Corp. v. HL Operating Corp., 680 F.3d 713 (6th Cir. 2012), is similarly 

not analogous. In HL Operating, the defendant waited until three days before the discovery 

deadline to alert the plaintiff that it sought to enforce rights under the arbitration agreement despite 
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no prior references thereto, assertion ofa counterclaim, and substantial participation in the matter. 

HL Operating, 680 F.3d 713, 715. Similar to the other cases relied on by Beaver to support its 

waiver argument, this case is not analogous because the party seeking to assert its rights under the 

arbitration agreement engaged in litigation without raising or seeking to enforce those rights. 

In Messina v. N Cent. Distrib., 821 F.3d 1047 (8th Cir. 2016), the defendant "filed an 

answer raising twenty four affirmative defenses but did not mention arbitration." Messina, 821 

F.3d 1047, 1049. The defendant failed to mention or pursue any of its rights under the arbitration 

agreement for over eight months. 

In Zuckerman Spaeder, LLP v. Auffenberg, 396 U.S. App. D.C. 195,646 F.3d 919 (2011), 

the defendant had answered and asserted a counterclaim, then answered an amended complaint 

and amended its counterclaim, all without asserting any right to arbitration. Auffenberg, 396 U.S. 

App. D.C. 195, 197. These courts found the parties had waived their rights to arbitrate because 

the parties failed to assert rights under the arbitration agreement or even mention its existence until 

litigation was months or years underway. 

Not only are these cases distinguishable because of Cabot and Cranberry's immediate 

assertion of their rights under the arbitration agreement, but also, these cases do not relate to a 

circumstance where the party who initially sought arbitration seeks to relitigate the issues it 

arbitrated. The cases cited by Beaver were cases where a party was seeking arbitration initially, 

not seeking to challenge the award. The argument advanced by Beaver combined with the facts 

at bar present a chilling scenario where a party to a final and binding arbitration could seek to 

overturn an award it does not like in circuit court, and a defending party, who accepted the 

bargained-for finality, could be deemed to have waived all rights under the agreement whatsoever 

purely by virtue ofits actions in defending the claims in circuit court to enforce the final arbitration 
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agreement. Such a precedent would create a surge oflitigants in circuit courts who were displeased

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